
 
 
 
 

 LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 

 
 

Our Ref: 
 
 

  
Contact: 

 
Charlies Yankiah 

      

    Tel: 0151 330 1079 
      

    Date: 27 February 2019 
 

 
To: All Members of the Transport Committee  

Councillors L Robinson (Chair), G Friel 
(Deputy Chair), R Abbey, D Baum, 
A Carr, J Dodd, S Foulkes, P Hayes, 
H Howard, J Jackson, D Johnson, 
A Lavelle, P McKinley, N Nicholas, 
M O'Mara OBE, G. Pearl, G Philbin, 
K Roberts, J Stockton, S Murphy, 
C Rowe, H Thompson, J Williams and 
F Wynn. 

  
 
 
Dear Councillor,  
 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the Transport Committee to be held on 
Thursday, 7 March 2019 at 2.00 pm in the Authority Chamber, Merseytravel 
Offices, No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is attached. 
 
Should Members need to declare an interest in any items included on the agenda, 
forms are obtainable from the Democratic Services Team or in the meeting. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Paid Service 
 
 
Enc. 



 

 

Transport Committee 
 

7 March 2019 
 

Agenda 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  1 - 12 

 To consider the minutes of the last meeting of the Transport 
Committee held on 31st January 2019. 
 
 

 

4.   Presentation   

 To receive a presentation from Tom Carbery, Rail 
Development Advisor in relation to the Northern 
Powerhouse Rail and HS2. 
 
 

 

5.   Quarter 3 Merseytravel Corporate Plan, Performance 
and Financial Monitoring Report 2018/19  

13 - 48 

 To consider the report which presents an overview of 
financial, corporate and operational performance of 
Merseytravel for Quarter 3 (October to December) 2018/19 
and to provide an indicator to identify any key risks to future 
performance during the last quarter of the financial year. 
 
 

 

6.   Mersey Ferries Quarterly Update March 2019  49 - 52 

 To consider the report providing a summary of key activities 
within Mersey Ferries, including an update on progress of 
the long term Mersey Ferries Strategy. 
 
 

 

7.   Response to Welsh Government Consultation - 
Improving Public Transport in Wales  

53 - 58 

 To consider the report which outlines Liverpool City 
Region’s response to a consultation on improved public 
transport in Wales. 
 

 



 

8.   Public Question Time   

 Members of the public will be given the opportunity to ask 
questions which have been submitted in accordance with 
Meetings Standing Orders No. 11.  
 
A period of 30 minutes will be allocated for this item and 
copies of valid questions will be circulated at the meeting. 
 
Members of the public who wish to submit questions are 
asked to contact Democratic Services by either: 
 

 Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
 

 Telephone: 0151 330 1086 
 

 In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, No.1 
Mann Island, PO Box 1976, Liverpool, L69 3HN 

 
A pro-forma will be supplied which, for this meeting must be 
returned by 5.00pm on Monday 4th March 2019. In this 
respect, return details are set out in the pro-forma. 
 
 

 

9.   Petitions and Statements   

 Members of the public will be given the opportunity to submit 
a single petition or statement in accordance with Meetings 
Standing Orders No. 11. 
 
Members of the Public who wish to submit a single petition 
or statement are asked to contact Democratic Services by 
either: 
 

 Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
 

 Telephone: 0151 330 1086 
 

 In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, No.1 
Mann Island, PO Box 1976, Liverpool, L69 3HN 

 
All petitions and statements for this meeting should be 
submitted to Merseytravel, using the contact details above, 
by 5.00pm on Monday 4th March 2019 

 

 
 

10.   Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair   
 

mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 

 
Transport Committee 

 
31 January 2019 

 
 
Present: Councillor L Robinson, Chair 

Councillor G Friel, Deputy Chair 
 

 Councillors A Carr, J Dodd, S Foulkes, P Hayes, 
H Howard, D Johnson, A Lavelle, P McKinley, 
N Nicholas, M O'Mara OBE, G Pearl, G Philbin, 
K Roberts, J Stockton, C Rowe, H Thompson, 
J Williams and F Wynn. 

  
  
  

 
 

 
 

 

84. Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ron Abbey Dennis 
Baum, Jimmy Jackson and Susan Murphy. 
 

__________ 
 

The Chair informed the Committee about the Transport for the North press 
release. 

 
The Chair also informed the Committee that Councillor Ron Abbey’s wife 
and Councillor Susan Murphy had not been well recently and on behalf of 

the Committee passed on his best wishes. 
__________ 

 
 

85. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Helen Thompson declared a pecuniary interest in Item 6 
Quarterly Bus Update and Item 7 Public Question Time and left the room 
when both items were being considered, by virtue of being a member of the 
Liverpool City Council Planning Committee. 
 
 

86. Minutes of the Last Meeting  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the last meeting of the Transport 
Committee held on 10th January 2019, be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

 

87. Mersey Tunnel Tolls 2019/20  
 
The Transport Committee considered a report presented by the Head of 

Customer Delivery, Gary Evans that outlined the legal procedure for 

revising the level of the tolls, summarised how the current level of tolls were 

arrived at and made proposals for the level of tolls payable in 2019/20. 

 

Members asked questions and commented on the following relating to the 

Mersey Tunnel Tolls 2019/20 –  

 Clarification on how the Fast Tag was going to be cost neutral 

and the increase in cost to non-residents of the LCR; 

 What was the historic debt and when it will be paid; 

 Congratulated the Finance Team for balancing the budget and 

the work done to produce the paperwork; and  

 Congratulated the Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram for delivering 

the promises made to LCR. 

 

Gary Evans informed the Committee that the proposals are cost neutral, as 

there was an expected reduction in income which was directly offset by an 

increase in income from non LCR residents with the existing usage 

continuing. It was also difficult to predict how people would behave and how 

those people made choices of travel through the tunnels in comparison to 

ferries, trains and buses. Use of the Tunnels is also dependable on the fuel 

costs, demographics and other factors. He stated that the historic debt is 

linked to the Tunnels Act 2004 and is expected to be repaid by 2048. The 

Tunnels Act states that in 2048, it was up to the Liverpool City Region to 

decide what happened with the tunnel tolls moving forward. 

 

Councillor Steve Foulkes (Finance and Organisational Development Lead) 

congratulated the Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram as one of the few 

politicians who has made a manifesto pledge and stuck to it and that this 

has restored faith in politics. He commented that the actual delivery of the 

promises puts to bed some of the accusations about the tunnels being a 

“cash cow” and that there would always need to be some form of income to 

pay for the tunnels, its operations and maintenance. He stated that 

residents who lived outside of the Liverpool City Region would not be 

pleased, but the residents of the Liverpool City Region had built it, 

maintained it and supported it and its was some good news for the people 

of the Liverpool City Region and for its economy. 

 

Councillor Paul Hayes proposed the following amendment to the 

recommendations in the report: - 

 

Page 2



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 

 Add to the end of recommendation a) - “and welcomes any reduction 

in tolls for residents of the City Region.” 

 Replace recommendation c) with - “This committee expresses 

concern that in its current form the proposals would mean those who 

contribute to our public services and local economy, but who happen 

to live just outside the City Region will have to pay more to get to 

work. It asks the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority to 

consider this before implementing the schedule of tolls contained in 

Table 1.” 

 

 Add to the end of recommendation d) - “The Tolls on the Mersey 

Tunnels harms our local economy. This committee takes this 

opportunity to express its view that the Mersey Tunnels should be toll 

free and commits to work with all decision makers to achieve both 

the political will and resources to achieve this.” 

 

There was no seconder, so the amendment fell. 

 

The Chair, Councillor Robinson stated that in order to seek support for the 

amendment, it should have been shared with members of the Committee in 

advance of the meeting. 

 

Councillor Nathalie Nicholas (Tunnels, Highways and Key Route Network 

Lead) thanked the team for all their hard work and producing the report and 

wanted to echo the comments made by Councillor Foulkes. 

 

The Chair, Councillor Robinson proposed the following amendment which 

was seconded by Councillor Gordon Friel, to insert at the end of 

recommendation (d): - 

 

“and calls upon the Conservative Government to make good on their 

manifesto pledges to reduce tunnel tolls for local residents, with the aim of 

the tunnels being ultimately free to use, and for them to fund this in its 

entirety.” 

 

A vote was taken on the Amendment and it was unanimously agreed. 

 

A vote was then taken on the following Substantive recommendations and it 

was unanimously agreed: - 

 

 

 

 

Page 3



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

 

RESOLVED that the Transport Committee:  

 

a) note the contents of this report; 

 

b) note the level of “authorised tolls” for the Mersey Tunnels as 

determined by the County of Merseyside Act 1980 (as amended by 

the Tunnels Act 2004), with details on calculation methods explained 

in section 3 of this report;  

 
c) recommend that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 

implement a schedule of tolls contained in Table 1 below with effect 

from Monday 1 April 2019: - 

 

Vehicle 

Class 

Authorised 

Toll 

(November 

RPI) 

2019/20 

Cash Toll  

2019/20 Fast 

Tag Toll – 

LCR 

Resident* 

2019/20 Fast 

Tag Toll – 

Non LCR 

Resident 

1 £2.00 £1.80 £1.00 £1.80 

2 £4.10 £3.60 £2.40 £2.40 

3 £6.10 £5.40 £3.60 £3.60 

4 £8.20 £7.20 £4.80 £4.80 

 *Liverpool City Region (LCR) resident defined as living within the 
electoral boundaries of Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens, 
Sefton and Wirral. 
 

d) recommend that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 

continue to offer the discounts set out in paragraph 3.19 of the report 

for 2019/20 and calls upon the Conservative Government to make 

good on their manifesto pledges to reduce tunnel tolls for local 

residents, with the aim of the tunnels being ultimately free to use, 

and for them to fund this in its entirety. 

 

 

88. Budget Setting Report 2019/20  
 

The Committee considered a report presented by the Director of 

Corporate Services, John Fogarty relating to the draft revenue budget 

and capital programme for Merseytravel, the price/fare increases 

proposed for 2019/20 and the revenue grants payable to Merseytravel in 

respect of general operations and Mersey Tunnels for 2019/20. 

 

 

Page 4



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 

Members asked questions and commented on the following relating to 

the Budget Setting Report for 2019/20: –  

 

 Congratulated the Finance Team for the work done to balance 

the budget; 

 Enquired about the equality and diversity implications; 

 The expenditure in the Programme Management Office; 

 The Prescot Lifts and the Capital Programme; 

 The Mersey Ferries cruise services and the increased in charges 

by multiples of 50p; 

 The Supported Bus Service Fares increase to the adult fares by 

10p, no change to the children's supported fare but no increase in 

charges to the bus operators for departure charges; and 

 The Mersey Ferries Charter programme. 

 

Councillor Steve Foulkes (Finance and Organisational Development 

Lead) informed the Committee that there was a freeze last year and the 

year before was a 5% cut so things are in an amazingly good place, 

despite the Government austerity. He stated that it has been quite clear 

that the region has been targeted for more cuts than any other region 

across the UK and that money has been moved away Metropolitan 

Councils to “Shires” owned by Conservative Governments. He 

commended the proposed budget to the Committee and thanked the 

officers for working so diligently to set the budget and produce the 

papers. 

 

John Fogarty informed the Committee that there were no planned 

changes and that Merseytravel needed to make routes more viable and 

more attractive to commercial operators and to develop a strategy to 

support the bus network to get more people to use the routes. 

 

Gary Evans informed the Committee that the Mersey Ferries Charter 

produced about 4/5 years ago established a single charge, but year on 

year there has been an increase in line with inflation. There has been a 

huge growth over the time in the cruise programme and work was 

underway to develop more programmes to bring to market. Own 

programmes have significantly increased.  

 

The Chair, Councillor Robinson stated that there were challenging 

budgetary times and any fares increase was never popular, but it was 

still cheaper than Stagecoach and Arriva. Officers would be looking at 

the bus station departure charges and would be bringing back proposals 

Page 5



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

 

to the Committee for an increase in charges at a future meeting. He 

thanked both John Fogarty and Sarah Johnston for their hard work in 

pulling the budget together in such an easy to digest format, which was 

open and transparent and honest to the public and also thanked officers 

for managing much of the reduction in the back office having to make 

some difficult decisions.  

 

The Transport Committee unanimously agreed the following 

recommendations including a revised version of Appendix C that was 

tabled at the meeting and as appended to these minutes: - 

 

RESOLVED that the Transport Committee: -  

 

a) requests Liverpool City Region Combined Authority to approve 

2019/20 operating grants for both public transport and Mersey 

Tunnels operating activities as detailed in section 4 of the report; 

 

b) approves the fare/ price increases included within the report and, 

subject to approval, seek that the financial implications of these fare 

increases are included within the draft budget for 2019/20; and 

 

c) approves the Capital Programme as detailed in Section 4 of the 

report. 

 

89. Quarterly Bus Update  
 

The Committee considered a report presented by Laura Needham (Bus 

Strategy Programme Manager) relating to the Third Quarter of 2018/19 

with regard to achievements of the LCR Bus Alliance, the latest progress 

on improving the procurement management and quality of supported 

services through a series of reforms, progress on developing the 

commitment of the LCR Devolution Deal in respect of improving bus 

services and other key initiatives delivered to improve the bus offer 

across the region. 

 

Members asked questions and commented on the following relating to 

the Quarterly Bus Update: - 

 The 153 bus that runs through Eccleston in St Helen’s that is not 

picking up anyone when it goes into the bus station having waited 

for 10 minutes; 

 Were officers aware of the issues relating to Avon and the 

financial concerns and why wasn’t anything done to support or 

assist Avon; 

Page 6



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 

 Do the Bus and Legal Teams referred to in paragraph 3.4.1 of the 

report, address the social value concerns when agreeing 

contracts for the supported bus services; 

 Can any assurances be given that consultation with passengers 

and local residents will take place in advance while the Bus 

Rerouting Strategy is being planned and implemented; 

 The Key Route Network (KRN) is not mainly used by buses, but 

yet the Bus Network Performance Survey Team is due to 

undertake surveys on stops and shelters across the KRN and 

roads, why is this; 

 Would like to see more social impact analysis information 

included in reports in future; and 

 There needs to be more consultation and information sharing with 

passengers, too many times things are done retrospectively, for 

example, Arriva changed its bus schedule for the No. 9 bus which 

affects NHS staff including nurses. There was no consultation, no 

information, no notices or timetable changes on the bus shelters. 

 

Laura Needham informed the Committee that she didn’t have responses 

for all the questions asked and would be happy to provide responses in 

writing to the Committee following the meeting. She stated that in 

relation to the Bus Rerouting Strategy that it was led by Liverpool City 

Council and that a consultative forum had been arranged and letters 

have been sent to local residents. She also commented that in relation 

to the KRN that it was being used due to it being suggested in the 

passenger survey and was being used as part of the trial. 

 

Frank Rogers informed the Committee that Merseytravel had to be 

incredibly careful about what is said and done with bus operators and 

that Merseytravel couldn’t pre-determine what would happen with Avon 

and then take action as Merseytravel could be liable and action could be 

taken against Merseytravel. He further stated that the team did 

everything they could to re-instate services in light of the financial 

position of the organisation, but it was not for Merseytravel to get 

involved in another organisation to figure out the outcome. He 

commented that Merseytravel were looking to increase the services and 

promote the use of the bus for young people, by increasing quality 

control standards and making them think of the use of the bus, but it 

does not yet include social value in terms of the service. 

 

Steve Foulkes (Finance and Organisational Development Lead) 

informed the Committee that Merseytravel did well to reinstate bus 

Page 7



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

 

services as best as possible given the financial circumstances to the 

organisation, but consideration needed to be given to the ripple effects 

of bus services, for example, housing estates and housing offers where 

there are no bus services, which could have a negative impact on 

communities. 

 

The Chair, Councillor Robinson informed the Committee that things are 

done through proper consultation, but there are elements that are still 

subject to planning applications.  People don’t just get on the bus for 

nothing, they have a purpose, whether it is to get to work, or go 

shopping and do things, but it is about the understanding of what’s going 

on and how to provide the service to match it. He stated that he was a 

bit worried about changes to routes and services without consultation or 

information and that he would bring it to the attention of the Bus Alliance 

which was part of their agreement. 

 

 

90. Public Question Time  
 

The Committee received four questions from Mr Andrew Wennell and Mr 

Mark Magill: 

 

Mr Wennell’s questions: - 

Question 1 

Back in 2018 once the upgrade work to Lime Street was completed we 

would be having 3 new train routes. But it’s now January 2019 and still 

no new routes have materialised. When are we going to see the 3 new 

routes from Liverpool Lime Street commence? 

 

Question 2 

We have various express bus routes running from Liverpool X1, X2, X3, 

X5 & X8. Which are all good bus routes to get to places quicker. But 

only the X2 & X8 run 7 days a week. The others only run Monday to 

Saturday. So why are places like Kirkby, Widnes and Runcorn left with 

the slower bus routes on a Sunday? 

 

The Chair thanked Mr Wennell for submitting his questions and for 

attending the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be 

provided within 10 working days.  

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 

Mr Magill’s questions: - 

Question 1 

What is the nature of Merseytravel's involvement in the proposed bus 

hub development at Old Haymarket? Is it purely advisory in terms of 

questions about bus traffic or is the relationship deeper? 

 

Question 2 

In the planning documents, the Council estimates that circa 1,700 buses 

per day will use the facility, with 120 using it an hour in peak. Does 

Merseytravel have any specialist knowledge on how this amount of 

buses can safely and efficiently use the facility? 

 

The Chair thanked Mr Magill for submitting his questions and for 

attending the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be 

provided within 10 working days. 

 

 

91. Petitions and Statements  
 

No petitions or statements were submitted for this meeting. 

 

 

92. Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair  
 

There was no other urgent business. 

 
 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
                                                                       CHAIR 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix C 
MERSEY FERRIES PRICING PROPOSALS 2019/20 

 

 Current Proposed 

TICKET TYPE 2018/19 2019/20 

COMMUTER   

COMMUTER SINGLE ADULT (AM) 2.70 2.80 

SHUTTLE SINGLE CHILD (AM) 1.30 1.40 

SHUTTLE RETURN ADULT (AM) 3.50 3.60 

SHUTTLE RETURN CHILD (AM) 1.70 1.80 

WEEKLY SAVER 14.00 14.50 

MONTHLY SAVER 58.50 62.00 

3 MONTHLY SAVER 142.00 150.00 

ANNUAL SAVER 500.00 520.00 

RIVER EXPLORER   

ADULT CROSS RIVER 5.50 6.00 

CONCESSION CROSS RIVER 5.00 5.00 

CHILD CROSS RIVER 4.00 4.50 

ADULT FULL CRUISE 10.00 11.00 

CHILD FULL CRUISE 6.50 7.00 

FAMILY FULL CRUISE 28.00 30.00 

CONCESSION FULL CRUISE 9.00 9.50 

WHOLESALER/FIT RATE FULL CRUISE +20 7.00 7.50 

GROUPS RATE FULL CRUISE +20 8.00 8.00 

MERSEYSIDE CONCESSION CRUISE UPGRADE - 3.50 

SPACEPORT   

ADULT SPACEPORT 9.50 10.00 

CHILD (5-15) 6.00 6.50 

FAMILY 26.00 26.50 

CONCESSION 8.00 8.50 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT ADULT 15.00 15.50 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT CHILD (5-15) 9.00 9.50 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT FAMILY* 41.00 42.50 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT CONCESSION 12.50 13.00 

PRE BOOKED SCHOOLS - SPACEPORT   

CHILD (5-15) SPACEPORT 6.00 6.50 

JOINT CRUISE/SPACEPORT CHILD (5-15) 8.00 8.50 

CHILD WITH ROCKET WORKSHOP 7.50 7.50 

U BOAT STORY   

ADULT 7.50 8.00 

CHILD (5-15) 5.00 5.50 

FAMILY 21.00 22.50 

CONCESSION 6.50 7.00 

MANCHESTER SHIP CANAL CRUISE   

ADULT/CHILD/OAP 42.00 44.00 

COACH GROUP PRICE - 38.00 

SUMMER EVENING CRUISE   

ADULT/CHILD/OAP 14.95 14.95 

CHARTERS   

3 HOUR CHARTER HIRE SECOND BOAT 3,600.00 3,600.00 

SUBSEQUENT HOURLY CHARGE 1,000.00 1,000.00 

RUNNING BOAT/MID WEEK   

2 HOUR CHARTER BETWEEN 7 – 9 PM 1,200.00 1,300.00 

HOURLY CHARGE 1,000.00 1,000.00 

MSCC CHARTER 1 DAY 15,500.00 16,000.00 

Page 11



 

Page 12



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee  
 
Meeting:     7 March 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF MERSEYTRAVEL 
 

QUARTER 3 MERSEYTRAVEL CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE AND  
FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 2018/19 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present an overview of financial, corporate and 

operational performance of Merseytravel for Quarter 3 (October to December) 
2018/19, and provide an indicator to identify any key risks to future performance 
during the last quarter of the financial year. 
 

1.2 The Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report includes the following elements: 
 
(a) provides an overview of results of financial monitoring for Quarter 3 2018/19; 
 
(b) performance against the Corporate Plan Priorities for Quarter 3 2018/19; and 
 
(c) report performance against the 8 Corporate Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs) for Quarter 3 2018/19.  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Members are recommended to note the contents of this report and request further 
information as appropriate. 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The 2018/19 Corporate Plan summarises the strategic direction for Merseytravel 

based on requirements of the Combined Authority, Liverpool City Region priorities 
and the needs of our stakeholders and customers. 
 

3.2 This report focuses on the third quarter of 2018/19 and summarises delivery and 
performance against corporate KPIs. 

 
 
 
 
 Page 13

Agenda Item 5



3.3 Merseytravel applies a RAG rating system for the corporate performance reporting 
processes and an amended rating system has been applied for 2018/19 to add a 
degree of sophistication.  The definition of RAG is: – 

 

RED 
Highly Problematic – Delivery at significant risk OR 
abandoned 

AMBER / RED Problematic – Delivery at risk but not significant 

AMBER / GREEN Manageable – Delivery at marginal risk 

GREEN Well Managed – No risk to delivery OR complete 

Not Started Not Commenced – No risk to delivery 

 
3.4 For 2018/19, a RAG rating of „Not Yet Started‟ is being used.  This is for service 

level activities that have either yet to commence, are scheduled to commence later 
in the year, are supporting activities to operational undertakings which have not yet 
been initiated or where support has yet to be requested but for KPIs and Priorities.  

 
3.5 A brief narrative is provided along with each rating to provide clarity and justification 

for the rating, and support management decision-making in any action necessary to 
improve overall performance. 
 

3.6 Further detail on the corporate KPIs and performance against these is attached as 
an Appendix to this report.  The table within Section 5 of this report gives a headline 
of that data.  Where there is more than 1 measure or activity, the average RAG 
rating (either over 50% or the midpoint between the extremes) has been applied. 

 
 
4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
 Revenue Budget 2018/19 
 
4.1 A budget of £105.85m was approved by Merseytravel in February 2018 with a grant 

provided from the Combined Authority of £92m for the operation of Transport 
services and a £13.83m contribution from reserves.  Of the budgeted contribution 
from reserves, £1.88m was required to balance the budget and £11.96m to support 
the Rolling Stock project team costs.   

 
4.2 A separate grant of £28.47m was approved to cover the operational costs 

associated with the Mersey Tunnels.   
 
4.3 The table below details the revenue position for Merseytravel for the period to the 

end of December 2018 showing the variances against phased budgets as well as a 
projected outturn for each service area: 

  

Page 14



 
 Annual 

Budget 
 

£’000 

Budget to 
Date 

 
£’000 

Spend 
to Date 

 
£’000 

Favourable/ 
(Unfvrable) 
Variance 
£’000 

Projection 
2018/19 

 
£’000 

Favourable/ 
(Unfvrable) 
Variance 
£’000 

Bus Services 16,654 12,400 11,896 504 16,297 357 

Rail Services 1,546 1,337 3,582 (2,245) 4,548 (3,002) 

Rolling Stock  11,959 8,969 5,192 3,777 8,979 2,980 

Mersey Ferries 2,606 1,860 550 1,310 1,515 1,091 

The Beatles 
Story 

(1,060) (1,092) (831) (261) (1,060) - 

Mersey Tunnels 28,470 21,353 21,353 - 28,470 - 

Customer 
Delivery 

6,710 4,620 4,215 405 6,532 178 

Concessionary 
Travel 

53,865 39,632 39,632 - 53,865 - 

Corporate 
Management 

2,607 1,976 1,752 224 2,198 409 

Policy & LTP 
Development 

2,019 1,513 1,575 (62) 2,019 - 

People & 
Customer 
Development 

3,667 2,657 2,545 112 3,527 140 

IT 0 387 389 (2) (60) 60 

Asset 
Management 

0 6 (391) 397 (766) 766 

Programme 
Management 
Office 

0 0 (77) 77 (101) 101 

Resources 0 17 (89) 106 (98) 98 

Corporate Costs 5,281 3,882 2,922 960 4,754 527 

Total Net Cost 
of Service 

134,324 99,517 94,215 5,302 130,619 3,705 

Funded by:       

Merseytravel 
Operational 
Grant 

(92,020) (69,015) (69,015) - (92,020) - 

Tunnels 
Operational 
Grant 

(28,470) (21,353) (21,353) - (28,470) - 

Application of 
Reserves 

(13,834) (10,375) (6,598) (3,777) (10,129) (3,705) 

Total Income (134,324) (100,743) (96,966) (3,777) (130,619) (3,705) 

Total Net 
(Income)/ 
Expenditure 

0 (1,226) (2,751) (1,525) -  

 
  

Page 15



 
4.4 The current outturn projections suggests a projected underspend of £3.7m for 

Merseytravel. This represents the net position on services and does not fully reflect 
some significant under and overspends in key areas. The key variances are 
detailed below. 

 
(a) Underspend on Bus arising from rephrasing of spend in respect of alternative 

service delivery.  Spend planned in the current year will now take place in 
2019/20; Overspend on Rail relates to the reduction in Special Rail Grant 
from Government which we pass to Merseyrail.  We are working with 
Merseyrail to find ways in which the operation of the concession can be 
changed in order to accommodate this reduction.  The introduction of the 
new state-of-the-art fleet should give us both the opportunity to do this 

(b) Underspend on Rolling Stock due to a rephrasing of expenditure.  Spend 
planned for the current year will now take place in 2019/20; 

(c) Underspend on Mersey Ferries is the result of a one off dividend from the 
Beatles Story to the Ferries group, which reduces the requirement for 
funding from Merseytravel in the current year and; 

(d) Underspends arising from vacant posts within Customer Delivery, Asset 
Management and People and Customer Delivery have contributed to service 
underspends. 

 
4.5 Taking account of the above, in balancing the budget for 2018/19 there will be an 

application of reserves of £11.98m to fund Rolling Stock and the reduction in SRG. 
After allowing for these specific items there is a net reduction in the use of 
Merseytravel reserves of £3.7m; however, the initial budget assumed a utilisation of 
£1.8m to support the revenue budget and in effect this is avoidance of utilisation. It 
is therefore proposed that the £1m from the TBS dividend is earmarked for the 
Ferries capital programme in future years and the remaining £0.9m is transferred to 
the modernisation reserve. 

 
4.6 A more detailed analysis of service budgets is provided at Appendix A.   
 

Capital Programme 

 
4.7 The table below summarises Merseytravel‟s capital programme for 2018/19.  A 

detailed capital programme is included at Appendix B. 
 

 Approved 
Budget 
£’000 

Revised 
Budget 
£’000 

Expenditure 
to Date 
£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
£’000 

Bus 2,630 2,703 551 1,519 

Smart Ticketing 170 223 53 623 

Ferries 640 640 346 491 

Corporate Strategy 6,745 7,552 636 7,552 

ICT 480 480 286 463 

Support Services 450 465 11 465 

Rail 15,565 16,385 10,012 13,247 

Tunnels 10,200 10,605 1,638 3,322 

Rolling Stock 167,000 169,781 80,263 143,267 

Total Capital Spend 203,880 208,834 93,796 170,949 

 Page 16



4.8 Spend in the first three quarters of 2018/19 represent 45% of the overall capital 
programme for Merseytravel.  Whilst spend levels are low, the profile of capital 
spend is such that this tends to build gradually throughout the year with a greater 
proportion of spend occurring in the last quarter of the year.   

 
Financial Risks and Balances 

 
4.9 The table below details the anticipated position in respect of Merseytravel‟s 

balances as at the 31 March 2019, based on the assumed utilisation of reserves for 
the purpose of supporting the revenue and capital budgets for 2018/19. 

 

 Balance as at 
1 April 2018 

£’000 

Utilisation in 
Year 
£’000 

Balance at 
31 March 2019 

£’000 

Capital Reserves 
Earmarked Reserves 
Revenue/ Working Balances 

5,749 
55,290 

1,739 

(5,749) 
(12,788) 

0 

0 
42,502 

1,739 

Total 62,778 (18,537) 44,241 

 
4.10 Whilst for the reasons identified at 4.4 to 4.6 the utilisation of reserves during the 

year is less than anticipated at budget setting, there is still a significant reliance on 
reserves to balance both the revenue and capital budget. The overall level of 
reserves is predicted to reduce further during 2019/20 due to a continued reliance 
on reserves to bridge the gap in funding from the SRG reduction and other budget 
pressures. 

 
 
5. PERFORMANCE AGAINST 2018/19 CORPORATE KPIs 
 
5.1 Full details of the data that contributes to the overall progress ratings of the KPIs 

can be found in Appendix C attached to this report.  The term “Monitoring Purposes” 
means data is gathered for comparison or noting, as it cannot readily be influenced 
on a quarterly basis, requiring wider strategic intervention to improve beyond direct 
Merseytravel control and influence.  However, a RAG rating is provided (where 
appropriate) based on historic data or industry standards to give an indication of the 
current position. 

 
  

Page 17



5.2 The following table sets out the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
for 2018/19:  

 

Key Performance 
Indicator 

Overall 
Status Q3 

Comments 

KPI 1 
Affordability 

AMBER/ 
GREEN 

 

Monitoring purposes 
 
This data has been rebased to 2012 for the 
performance cycle and is reported 
annually.  The Benchmark is RPI +1%.  
Tunnels tolls are based on class 1 vehicles 
only.  Motoring costs have been taken from 
the RAC website for a 2L petrol engine 
vehicle with an average mileage of 10k 
miles. 
 

KPI 2 
Patronage 

AMBER/ 
GREEN 

 

 
Commercial Bus is at 29.0m which is a 
slight reduction from 29.8m, which the Bus 
Service Area will observe closely. 
 
Rail data is unavailable for this quarter due 
to a failed IT legacy system.  Data has 
been collated but extraction and analysis 
has not yet been possible. 
 
Data processes for Walking and Cycling 
are being developed. 
 
Queensway and Kingsway Tunnels have 
consistent patronage. 
 
Mersey Ferries are showing a slight 
increase in Commuter Patronage. 
 

KPI 3 
Reliability 

AMBER/ 
GREEN 

 

Based on the estimated figure for 
Supported Bus reliability, an improvement 
is seen for Q3, moving from an 
Amber/Green rating in Q2 to a Green. 
 
Merseyrail figures continue to be on target. 
 
Northern remains with a Red rating for 
Reliability, Performance dropped to 66.2% 
in Q3. The ongoing RMT industrial dispute 
continued to impact on Northern 
significantly and resulted in a greatly 
reduced service level, in particular 
hindering the provision of train services 
after 1700 hours, on strike days.  
 
Ferries continue to be above target. 
 
Both Tunnels remain as Green as both 
exceeded their targets. 
 Page 18



Key Performance 
Indicator 

Overall 
Status Q3 

Comments 

KPI 4 
Punctuality 

AMBER/ 
RED 

 

 

Merseytravel is working closely with bus 
operators to improve performance on 
Commercial Bus punctuality. The 2018/19 
Bus alliance joint Business and Investment 
plan oversees the delivery of a number of 
infrastructure schemes and studies and in 
partnership with the other local authorities 
the Bus Alliance intends to bid for 
Transforming Cities Funds to implement a 
package of improvements designed to 
transform busy commuter bus corridors. 
 
Supported Bus punctuality remains on 
target. 
 
Merseyrail continue to be slightly above 
target and Northern operated an extremely 
poor and challenging Q3 due to reasons 
outlined above. 
 
Mersey Ferries Commuter is slightly below 
target but Leisure is higher. 
 
Mersey Tunnels journey times are quicker 
than the benchmark. 
 

KPI 5 
Safety 

GREEN 

 

Monitoring purposes 
 
The National Rail Passenger and the 
National Bus Passenger surveys were in 
the field during Q3 with the results 
expected to be released Q4. 
 
On Bus Incidents remain in the Green zone 
for Q3. 
 

KPI 6 
Customer 
Comments 

AMBER / 
GREEN 

 

Departments when responding to customer 
comments are mostly performing well.   
 
The Summer Wave of Mystery Shopper 
Surveys was completed during July and 
August 2018 across the bus and rail 
network. 

KPI 7 
Connectivity to and 

within the City 
Region 

 

AMBER / 
GREEN 

 

Monitoring purposes – All figures and 
comments as Q2. 
 
Rail engineering work at Lime Street from 
2 June to 29 July has seen fewer routes 
serving the city; during the full blockade at 
Lime Street this decreased further to 
30.1% but is now at 35.3%. 
 
Overall connectivity was slightly down due Page 19



Key Performance 
Indicator 

Overall 
Status Q3 

Comments 

to the timetable change meaning that the 
service from Preston to South Parkway no 
longer runs. 
 
Combined connectivity is slightly up owing 
to marginally better interchange options via 
other routes. 
 
External connectivity was expected to 
change with the December 2018 timetable 
but this is now subject to change. 
 

KPI 8 
Key Strategic Projects 

 

AMBER 
/GREEN 

 

The Newton-Le-Willows project continues 
to be constructed and practical completion 
is expected in January 2019. 
 
 

 
  

Page 20



Performance against 2018/19 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.3 For 2018/19, 3 Transport Priorities have been developed (Advise, Develop and 

Deliver).  This report has grouped the Service Level Activities (SLAs) into those 3 
areas. 

 
5.4 Directors are accountable for overall delivery of the Priorities.  Where there is more 

than 1 activity supporting the delivery of the Priority, the average RAG rating (either 
over 50% or the midpoint between the extremes) has been applied.  Discussion 
during the preparation of the quarterly report may also influence the final RAG 
decision to add a qualitative input.  The chart below summarises overall 
performance against the 3 priorities.  The priorities are delivered as a result of the 
performance of 231 Service Level Activities (SLA).  There are 15 SLAs are at a Red 
or Amber/Red status. 

 

 
 

  

Page 21



Priority 1 - Advise 
Provide high-quality, professional advice and support to the Liverpool City 
Region 

Green 

62 strategic activities: 46 Green, 10 Amber/Green, 1 Amber/Red, 
5 Not Started 

 
 

Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

1a Transport at the heart of the 
City Region‟s potential for 
economic growth and 
regeneration 

Green 

This Strategic Activity is delivering, with 
the majority of Service Level Activities 
being reported as Green, including 
activities: 

 supporting the development of the 
Tunnels Long Term Strategy; 

 On-going support for TfN business 
case development work on Northern 
Powerhouse Rail with the CA Evidence 
& Intelligence team heavily involved on 
data and evidential working groups. 

 
The development of the Mayoral Transport 
Plan has moved from an Amber/Red rating 
in Q2 to an Amber/Green in Q3, with the 
scope being agreed and presented to 
Transport Committee on 10 January 2019. 
The aim is to complete a non-statutory 
Mayoral Transport Plan by April 2019. 
 

1b Support for the Combined 
Authority to deliver across the 
City Region through a range of 
funding streams and with a 
robust governance framework 

Green 

Merseytravel continues to support the CA 
to deliver its priorities. For example, by 
improving bus services on the LCR's Key 
Route Network, Merseytravel continues 
the development of an evidence base for 
investment through the LCR Bus Alliance.  
A Green Routes steering group has been 
set up to develop proposals to support bus 
improvements on 5 key bus corridors. 
 
Service Level Activity „Advise the CA on 
taking advantage of the transport 
opportunities presented through the LCR 
Devolution agreement with central Page 22



Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

government‟ moved to an Amber/Red 
rating in Q3. Delivery continues on the 
current LCR Devo Deal commitments - 
principally alternative bus delivery models 
business case, Key Route Network and 
devolved transport budgets. KRN 
development and implementation work did 
not progress at the desired pace as CA is 
not currently in a position to manage the 
KRN in a practical sense. 
 

1c An effective and 
efficient  centrally managed 
Transport Partnership 

Green 

This Strategic Activity seen improvement 
in Q3, with all activities on target or being 
delivered. 
 
For example, leading the development of 
robust resilience arrangements for Rail 
through integration with other services and 
transport partners in the LCR. METB 
continues to operate as the key transport 
conduit for cross partner sharing and 
planning for major events/activities with the 
potential to disrupt or put strain on the 
public transport network. TCC process 
employed as and when required as seen 
for the Giant Spectacular in October. 
 

 
  

Page 23



Priority 2 - Develop 
Improving connectivity by leading on the development of  strategic transport 

initiatives for the Liverpool City Region 

Green 

79 strategic activities: 46 Green, 13 Amber/Green, 4 Amber/Red, 1 Red 
15 Not Started 

 
 

Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

2a A safe, integrated, clean, 
sustainable and efficient 
transport network for the 
Liverpool City Region that 
maximises the potential for 
economic growth and 
regeneration 

Green 

The development of a Tunnels Strategy for 
the LCR moved from an Amber/Red rating 
in Q2 to an Amber/Green in Q3, this was 
down to significant work being undertaken 
in Q3. Completion is planned for the end of 
2018/19. 
 
The Service Level Activity „Co-Chair the 
LCR Airport Transport Forum‟ did not 
happen this quarter due to resource 
issues; therefore, it received an 
Amber/Red rating. Support to the forum 
continues now and will do going-forward.  
 

2b A City Region where people 
want to live, work, visit and 
invest 

Green 

All Service Level Activities are on target or 
being delivered within this Strategic 
Activity. 
 
An example of this delivery is the 
development of multi-model schemes to 
increase the opportunity for all to travel 
reducing the reliance on private cars and a 
number of low cost schemes have been 
delivered throughout 2018 which have 
been very effective in reducing congestion 
and improving efficiency. Formby 
Roundabout relining and Breck Road are 
two of the projects to benefit. 
 

2c Increased patronage across all 
public transport modes and a 
customer experience that 
is  high quality, accessible; 
convenient; sustainable, clean 
and efficient 

Amber
/Green 

This Strategic Activity has improved in Q3, 
moving to an Amber/Green rating from 
Amber/Red in Q2. 
 
The large majority of activities are 
delivering, three activities are rated as Page 24



Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

Amber/Red, these are: 

 „Making recommendations on how to 
improve the online digital journey 
planning experience for customers‟; 

 „Subject to funding proposal approvals 
support Customer Development to 
develop and introduce a replacement 
for the Customer Comments System 
that maximises opportunities to 
incorporate sales and marketing CRM‟; 

 „Complete development, 
implementation and commissioning of 
Newton Le Willows‟. 

Appropriate mitigating actions are stated 
against these activities in order to get them 
back on track. 
 
Development of an intuitive customer 
centric website to enhances the 
Merseytravel brand and better integrate 
the products, service and information 
offering, has been reported as a Red for 
the second quarter this year, as budget is 
not available to progress this work. 
 

  

Page 25



Priority 3 - Deliver 
Manage and develop a range of operational transport assets and services to 

support the efficient movement of people and goods 

Amber/
Green 

 
 

90 strategic activities: 57 Green, 13 Amber/Green, 6 Amber/Red, 3 Red, 
11 Not Started 

 

 

 

Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

3a Facilitating development and 
the promotion of all transport 
modes across the LCR 

Amber
/Green 

Five of the Service Level Activities that 
make up this Strategic Activity remain on 
track for delivery. 
 
There is one activity rated as an 
Amber/Red and this is the M53 Gorelink 
resurfacing project delivery. £3M 
committed scheme with Merseytravel‟s 
10% contribution. Start on site June 18 
with approximately 4 months duration. 
Mitigating actions are in place to progress 
this, but the original deadline will not be 
met. 
 

3b Ensuring directly delivered 
services are managed in a 
safe, customer focused, value 
for money and sustainable 
manner 

Amber
/Red 

This Strategic Activity has the highest 
number (5) of Amber/Red or Red RAG 
ratings.  
 
Service Level Activities rated as 
Amber/Red are: 

 Continue to develop an improving 
safety culture in Asset Management. 
Ensure AM's H&S Plan is in line with 
CDM 2015 and is developed and 
implemented and all appointed posts in 
place. 

 Support Customer Delivery to review 
and conclude future usage of the Royal 
Daffodil 

 Identify strategy for future usage of 
Woodside Terminal in line with Mersey 
Ferries Long Term Strategy and the 
wider Local Authority aspirations Page 26



Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

 
Mitigating actions are stipulated against 
each of these Service Level Activities, 
deadlines have been reviewed to reflect 
these changes. 
 
The two Service Level Activities rated Red 
are: 

 Ensure effective and efficient delivery of 
allocated projects within Merseytravel‟s 
Capital Programme. Ensure delivery of 
approved capital budgets with target of 
90%. Develop effective progress 
reporting with clear budget and 
expenditure timeline profiles. 

 Refresh the Seacombe Ferry terminal 
site to reflect the Mersey Ferries Long 
Term Strategy, including work on the 
landing stage. 

 
Challenges that resulted in the Red rating 
for delivery of the Capital Programme 
included both internal and external 
influences on resource availability, despite 
these challenges the schemes have 
commenced with timescales extended. 
 
To address the Seacombe Ferry terminal 
refresh, a request has been made to 
enable part of the existing Capital 
Programme to be diverted. 
 

3c Management of the Merseyrail 
concession and working with 
national rail operators to 
deliver high quality rail services 

Green 

All Service Level Activities remain within 
the Green zone for this Strategic Activity. 
 
Delivery continues on the management of 
the Merseyrail service through the 
Concession Agreement. This is done 
through the Merseyrail performance and 
concessions obligations – reviewed daily 
and discussed with Merseyrail every period 
both on an officer and directorate level. 
 

3d Championing the LCR Bus 
Offer and working with 
operators to deliver high 
quality bus services 

Amber
/Green 

This Strategic Activity has improved in Q3, 
with the majority of Service Level Activities 
on target or are being delivered 
satisfactorily. 
 
There are two Service Level Activities 
rated as Amber/Red: 
 

 Assisting the development of the Old 
Haymarket Bus Hub – work cannot Page 27



Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

commence in Q3 due to planning 
delays; 

 Support Customer Delivery in the 
removal of "Head of Queue" displays at 
all Liverpool 1 and Queens Square bus 
stations and develop proposals for 
RTI/Variable message screens – The 
scope has been reduced to Queens 
Square only and procurement exercise 
will begin in January 2019. 

 

3e Contemporary and affordable 
ticketing 

Green 

The RAG rating for this Strategic Activity 
remains Green, as the three Service Level 
Activities that sit within this remain in the 
Green zone. 
 
The activities are: 

 Look at the feasibility of implementing 
barrier ticket operation in the Mersey 
Ferries terminals – In Q3 the analysis 
identified that there is no immediate 
requirement for ticket barriers to be put 
into operation, whilst current 
procedures will be reviewed to ensure 
compliance; 

 Provide legal advices on proposed 
ticketing solutions; 

 Support the development of the 
SMART ticketing programme for the 
City Region with a focus upon 
development and delivery of the 
SMART on Rail elements – Railpass 
has now been enabled as a SMART 
product and a rollout to stations has 
been underway since December 2018. 

 

3f Enhanced organisational and 
service performance and 
customer satisfaction 

Amber
/Green 

This Strategic Activity remains 
Amber/Green in Q3. All but one of the 12 
Service Level Activities are rated as Green, 
delivering to target. 
 
„Carry out a wider staff review as a Service 
Area restructure. Develop and implement 
restructure to maximise operational 
efficiencies and provide clear guidelines in 
roles and responsibilities was the Service 
Level Activity rated as Red. Mitigating 
actions have been clearly stated, along 
with a timeline to address the challenges 
faced. 
 
 
 Page 28



Strategic Activities RAG Updates 

3g Facilitating the development of 
integrated, sustainable 
transport modes 

Green 

There are four Service Level Activities 
within this Strategic Activity that have 
commenced and are delivering on target, 
hence all are rated Green. 
 
They are: 

 New developments and events 
reviewed for transport implications; 

 Investments identified or secured to 
improve the transport network; 

 Provide lead and support on Major 
Events Transport Board to co-ordinate 
major events; 

 Represent Merseytravel at TAG as the 
delivery partner (alongside the 6 other 
Districts in that capacity). 

 

 
 
6. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
6.1 Whilst there may be HR issues as a result of the delivery of the Corporate Plan and 

its Priorities, there are no direct HR implications as a consequence of the delivery of 
this performance report. 

 
6.2 However, depending on the feedback received, there may be HR issues that may 

need to be resolved to improve performance. 
 
6.3 Physical Assets 
 

Whilst there may be Physical Asset issues as a result of the delivery of the 
Corporate Plan and its Priorities, there are no direct Physical Asset implications as 
a consequence of the delivery of this performance report. 

 
6.4 Information Technology 
 

Whilst there may be IT issues as a result of the delivery of the Corporate Plan and 
its Priorities, there are no direct IT implications as a consequence of the delivery of 
this performance report. 

 
 
7. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
7.1 While the report identifies a number of emerging risks to individual service 

performance, these are being managed within the 2018/19 current budget, service 
planning process and risk management process. 

 
7.2 There were no identified emerging risks that would require changes to overall 

budgets for 2018/19 or needed further consideration by the Primary Assurance and 
Risk Group or Audit and Risk Management Board. 

 
 
 Page 29



8. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no adverse implications arising directly from this report.  Any decisions 
and policies adopted or changed in the discharge of these priorities or activities will 
each be subject to an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA). 

 
 
9. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
 Communications and Stakeholder issues will be considered as part of the delivery 

of each of the Corporate Priorities. 
 
 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 This report summarises performance in Quarter 3 of 2018/19 against the Corporate 

Plan Priorities and Key Performance Indicator supporting the application of effective 
evidence-based management of resources and increased focus on the delivery of 
corporate priorities. 

 
10.2 Overall, progress is well on track or has been completed during the year, but it 

should be noted that comparison with previous quarterly performance data shows 
some areas of delivery taking a slight downward trajectory despite still maintaining 
good overall performance.  Attention to the detailed delivery across all Service 
Areas is crucial to prevent any slippage. 

 
10.3 Where there have been areas of underperformance against key strategic activities, 

actions have been put in place to address this and are summarised in the 
responses. 

 
10.4 Financial performance against revenue spending is currently showing a favourable 

variance.  There are no indications at this juncture that there will be significant 
slippage in capital spend during the year.  However, this will be monitored and 
details of any slippage reported back through to Merseytravel in due course. 

 
 

FRANK ROGERS 
Director General: Merseytravel 

 
Contact Officer(s): - 

Sarah Johnston – Head of Finance (330 1015) 

Stephen Littler – Corporate Performance Manager (330 1184) 

Katriona Lloyd – Performance Co-ordinator (330 1148) 

Jason Roberts – Implementation Officer (330 1364) 

Liz Storey- Corporate Communications Manager, Merseytravel (330 1430) 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Detailed Revenue Spend Quarter 2 
Appendix B – Capital spend against the capital programme in 2018/19 
Appendix C – Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 
 
Background Documents:  
Merseytravel Corporate Plan 2018-19 Page 30



BUS SERVICES Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 1,799 1,286 1,761
Premises 165 40 164
Transport 56 56 53
Supplies & Services 1,104 699 1,038
Third Party Payments 18,778 10,173 18,287
Support Services Recharges 2,228 1,671 2,228
Total Expenditure 24,130 13,925 23,531

Income:
Fees and Charges -5,078 -2,507 -4,816
Other External Income -165 -21 -185
Internal Recharges -717 -542 -717
Revenue Grants -1,516 -1,516 -1,516
Total Income -7,476 -4,587 -7,234

Net Total - Bus 16,654 9,339 16,297

RAIL SERVICES Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 849 494 678
Premises 321 202 321
Transport 8 5 8
Supplies & Services 156 92 252
Third Party Payments 88,096 64,280 90,497

1,057 798 1,057
Total Expenditure 90,487 65,871 92,813

Income:
Income -88,941 -62,289 -88,265
Total Income -88,941 -62,289 -88,265

Net Total - Rail 1,546 3,582 4,548

ROLLING STOCK Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 736 413 603
Premises 0 11 11
Transport 37 24 37
Supplies & Services 2,633 1,262 1,771
Third Party Payments 5,261 3,482 6,557
Other Payments 3,292 0 0
Total Expenditure 11,959 5,192 8,979

Net Total - Rolling Stock 11,959 5,192 8,979

CONCESSIONARY TRAVEL Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Third Party Payments 74,722 54,590 74,865
Support Services 901 676 901
Total Expenditure 75,623 55,266 75,766

Income:
Total Income -21,758 -15,633 -21,901

Net Total - Concessionary Travel 53,865 39,632 53,865

APPENDIX A: MERSEYTRAVEL QUARTER 3 REVENUE BUDGET

Page 31



CORPORATE MANAGEMENT Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 715 532 707
Premises 0 0 0
Transport 19 6 11
Supplies & Services 460 154 279
Support Services Recharges 2,198 1,648 2,198
Total Expenditure 3,392 2,340 3,195

CA Recharges 0 0 -212
Internal Recharges -785 -588 -785
Total Income -785 -588 -997

Net Total - Corporate Management 2,607 1,752 2,198

CUSTOMER DELIVERY Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 4,433 2,973 4,134
Premises 1,901 1,326 1,903
Transport 8 7 8
Supplies & Services 923 478 923
Support Service Recharges 2,502 1,766 2,502
Total Expenditure 9,767 6,549 9,470

Internal Recharges -1,030 -772 -1,030
Income -2,027 -1,562 -1,908
Total Income -3,057 -2,334 -2,938

Net Total - Customer Delivery 6,710 4,215 6,532

POLICY & LTP DEVELOPMENT Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 1,071 722 1,071
Premises 6 8 6
Transport 7 4 7
Supplies & Services 239 214 239
Third Party Payments 437 290 437
Support Service Recharges 877 658 877
Total Expenditure 2,637 1,897 2,637

Income:
Income -618 -322 -618
Total Income -618 -322 -618

Net Total - Policy & LTP Development 2,019 1,575 2,019

MERSEY FERRIES Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 2,078 1,478 2,026
Premises 920 756 974
Transport 110 110 139
Vessels 1,052 689 1,082
Supplies & Services 334 387 488
Support Service Recharges 2,269 1,745 2,269
Total Expenditure 6,763 5,166 6,978

Income:
Income  -4,157 -3,616 -4,463
TBS Dividend 0 -1,000 -1,000
Total Income -4,157 -4,616 -5,463

Net Total - Mersey Ferries 2,606 550 1,515

Page 32



THE BEATLES STORY Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 1,649 1,153 1,588
Premises 1,011 936 1,074
Transport 14 11 12
Supplies & Services 1,783 1,651 1,783
Support Services 219 164 219
Other Costs 520 394 520
Total Expenditure 5,196 4,310 5,196

Income:
Income -6,256 -5,141 -6,256
Total Income -6,256 -5,141 -6,256

Net Total - The Beatles Story -1,060 -831 -1,060

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 1,374 1,039 1,385
Premises 0 0 0
Transport 4 16 5
Supplies & Services 169 99 137
Support Service Recharges 1,577 1,183 1,577
Total Expenditure 3,124 2,337 3,104

Income:
Other Income 0 -3 -3
Grant Income -109 -6 -107
Internal Recharges -1,965 -1,473 -1,965
Total Income -2,073 -1,482 -2,074

Net Total - People Development 1,051 854 1,030

CUSTOMER DEVELOPMENT Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 1,146 733 1,017
Premises 2 1 2
Transport 6 4 7
Supplies & Services 675 385 683
Third Party Payments 476 311 477
Support Service Recharges 736 552 736
Total Expenditure 3,041 1,985 2,922

Income:
Other income -40 -40 -40
Grant Income -385 -254 -384
Total Income -425 -294 -424

Net Total - Customer Development 2,616 1,691 2,498

MERSEY TUNNELS Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 4,795 3,456 4,795
Premises 4,501 3,220 4,501
Transport 171 87 171
Supplies & Services 1,449 952 1,449
Other Payments 12,198 9,148 12,198
Support Service Recharges 5,355 3,786 5,355
Total Expenditure 28,470 20,649 28,470

Mersey Tunnels Operating Grant -28,470 -20,649 -28,470

Mersey Tunnels 0 0 0

Page 33



ASSET MANAGEMENT Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 6,969 4,990 6,700
Premises 5,217 3,642 4,835
Transport 245 148 195
Supplies & Services 356 219 291
Support Service Recharges 1,115 836 1,115
Total Expenditure 13,903 9,837 13,136

Income:
Other Income -1,424 -1,240 -1,423
Internal Recharges -12,479 -8,988 -12,479
Total Income -13,903 -10,228 -13,902

Net Total - Asset Management 0 -391 -766

IT Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 1,783 1,260 1,723
Premises 0 1 0
Transport 9 4 9
Supplies & Services 2,252 2,126 2,252
Support Service Recharges 387 290 387
Total Expenditure 4,432 3,682 4,371

Income:
Other Income -121 -60 -121
Internal Recharges -4,310 -3,232 -4,310
Total Income -4,432 -3,293 -4,431

Net Total - IT 0 389 -60

FINANCE Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 972 683 925
Transport 0 2 1
Supplies & Services 28 62 81
Support Service Recharges 674 505 674
Total Expenditure 1,675 1,252 1,681

Income:
Other Income -2 -10 -10
CA Recharges -185 -139 -185
Internal Recharges -1,488 -1,116 -1,488
Total Income -1,675 -1,265 -1,683

Net Total - Finance 0 -13 -2

AUDIT Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 322.862 217.20505 300
Transport 0.575 0.41807 1
Supplies & Services 29.263 4.33381 24
Support Service Recharges 118.89 89.1675 119
Total Expenditure 472 311 444

Income:
Grant Income 0 -26 -26
Internal Recharges -472 -354 -472
Total Income -472 -380 -498

Net Total - Audit 0 -69 -54

Page 34



LEGAL, PROCUREMENT & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 975 758 1,007
Premises 0 0 0
Transport 12 8 9
Supplies & Services 312 200 235
Support Service Recharges 528 396 528
Total Expenditure 1,828 1,363 1,779

Income:
CA Recharges -168 -126 -168
Other Income -22 -12 -16
Internal Recharges -1,638 -1,232 -1,638
Total Income -1,828 -1,370 -1,822

Net Total - Legal, Procurement & Democratic Services 0 -7 -42

PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT OFFICE Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 427 247 331
Transport 2 2 2
Supplies & Services 6 3 1
Total Expenditure 435 251 334

Income:
CA Recharges -100 -77 -100
Internal Recharges -335 -251 -335
Total Income -435 -328 -435

Net Total - Programme Management Office 0 -77 -101

CORPORATE COSTS Budget 2018/19 Spend as at Quarter 3 Projection 2018/19
Expenditure (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Employees 4112 2551 4,112
Premises 0 0 0
Transport 0 0 0
Supplies & Services 1024 351 622
Fees & Charges (excludes recharges) 144 20 20
Total Expenditure 5,280 2,922 4,754

Net Total - Corporate Costs 5,280 2,922 4,754

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Scheme Total Budget Total Expenditure Budget Remaining

 Forecast 

Outturn 

Bus Stop Flags 163,000 163,068 (68) 176,000            

General Bus Stops 6,000 4,800 1,200 6,000                

Bus Priorities 201,000 47,853 153,147 201,000            

Formby Roundabout 4,000 3,795 205 4,000                

Gillmoss Interchange 0 2,750 (2,750) 2,750                

Spellow Lane/County Road 488,500 26,809 461,691 295,000            

Rice Lane/Orrell Lane 488,500 5,400 483,100 128,000            

Black Bull 461,500 5,400 456,100 74,000              

Breck Road/Faraday Street 27,000 25,912 1,088 27,000              

Breck Road/Breckfield Road South 0 435 (435) 435                   

City Centre Duke Street and others 303,500 47,155 256,345 160,000            

Bus Stop Accessibility Improvements 390,000 199,448 190,552 280,000            

Bus Shelter Replacement A565 20,000 18,524 1,476 20,000              

RTPI @ Bus Stations 150,000 0 150,000 145,000            

TOTAL BUS 2,703,000 551,348 2,151,652 1,519,185       

DFT SMART 171,000 53,004 117,996 171,000

LCR Ticketing Initiative 0 0 0 400,000

Pay Point 30,000 0 30,000 30,000

Smart Web Portal 22,000 0 22,000 22,000

TOTAL SMART TICKETING 223,000 53,004 169,996 623,000

Seacombe Strengthening 197,000 93,365 103,635 112,000

Royal Iris Deck renewal programme 50,000 14,520 35,480 50,000

Pontoons & Bridges remedial works 13,000 12,560 440 13,000

Seacombe Clock roof safe system 23,000 22,616 384 23,000

Seacombe Pontoon and Bridges 112,000 32,730 79,270 84,000

Engine Control Systems 90,000 75,294 14,706 92,000

Emergency Generators - Vessels 30,000 30,000 () 30,000

Vessels Generator Engines 100,000 51,123 48,877 63,000

P
age 37



Vessels Fire Systems Renewals 7,000 0 7,000 6,000

Snowdrop Internal Works 18,000 14,100 3,900 18,000

TOTAL FERRIES 640,000 346,309 293,691 491,000

ITB  LTP Monitoring 1,196,000 196,425 999,575 1,196,000

ITB Low Carbon 0 86,188 (86,188) 0

ITB Major Scheme Management 0 49,145 (49,145) 0

ITB Congestion 0 69,112 (69,112) 0

Core Partnership Activities 735,000 117,111 617,889 735,000

Strategic Priorities 2,500,000 15,000 2,485,000 2,500,000

KRN Priorites 3,000,000 0 3,000,000 3,000,000

BBA St Helens 22,000 26,634 (4,634) 22,000

STEP LCR workplace charging posts 99,000 76,713 22,287 99,000

STEP Queens Drive Connectivity 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CORPORATE STRATEGY 7,552,000 636,327 6,915,673 7,552,000

0

Server Hardware 137,500 89,610 47,890 121,000

Printers 25,000 17,804 7,196 25,000

Laptop Replacement 130,000 41,968 88,032 130,000

Corporate Wifi Refresh 44,000 49,259 (5,259) 44,000

End Point Security 50,000 0 50,000 50,000

Perimeter Security Refresh 45,000 44,297 703 45,000

Core Telephony 5,000 0 5,000 5,000

Office 365 43,500 43,500 0 43,000

TOTAL ICT 480,000 286,440 193,560 463,000

Agresso 250,000 3,481 246,519 250,000

HR System 95,000 5,291 89,709 95,000

Mann Island 20,000 441 19,559 20,000

Mersey Tram Compensation 100,000 2,089 97,911 100,000

TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES 465,000 11,302 453,698 465,000

P
age 38



Maghull North 2,179,000 2,308,815 (129,815) 2,429,000

Halton Curve 4,045,000 2,240,832 1,804,168 2,680,000

LSP Renewals 100,000 0 100,000 100,000

Newton Le Willows 5,267,000 4,488,706 778,294 5,514,000

St Helens Junction Park and Ride 228,000 150,000 78,000 228,000

Liverpool Central Development 1,680,000 443,206 1,236,794 1,200,000

Station Validators 1,676,000 253,640 1,422,360 910,000

Spital Station P & R 650,000 125,961 524,039 186,000

Bromborough Station P & R 60,000 1,078 58,922 0

Park & Ride Schemes 500,000 0 500,000 0

TOTAL RAIL 16,385,000     10,012,238              6,372,762                    13,247,000     

Kingsway Tunnel Rewire 60,000 0 60,000 60,000

New Toll System Outline Design and Build 482,000 406,943 75,057 464,000

SCADA 75,000 61,716 13,284 68,000

Inspect & Repair ladders 0 3,573 (3,573) 4,000

Elec Switch Gear transformer renewals 715,000 0 715,000 90,000

Replace police vehicles 75,000 73,245 1,755 75,000

Tunnel Lane Control Renewal System 1,346,000 427,485 918,515 1,304,000

Long Term Strategy 60,000 0 60,000 60,000

Telman System 21,000 20,671 329 21,000

Queensway Vent Fan Overhauls programme 194,000 54,588 139,412 75,000

CCTV 150,000 25,745 124,255 150,000

Vent Station Interior Refurbishment Programme 130,000 120,268 9,732 50,000

Queensway Tunnel Rewire Outline Design 842,000 0 842,000 250,000

KW Gore Link Carriageway Resurfacing 3,405,000 27,107 3,377,893 200,000

QW Tunnel Road Deck Structural Assessment 975,000 202,965 772,035 100,000

Kingsway Cladding Renewal Outline Design 1,050,000 34,467 1,015,533 35,000

Kingsway Tunnel Asset Protection 25,000 5,082 19,918 15,000

Feasibility Study Water Mist System KW and QW 100,000 55,600 44,400 56,000

QWay HV Switches @North John Street 350,000 0 350,000 80,000

Wallasey Vehicle Wash 200,000 0 200,000 35,000

KWay - Retaining Walls 250,000 24,508 225,492 25,000

P
age 39



Taylor Street Roof 100,000 94,156 5,844 105,000

TOTAL TUNNELS 10,605,000 1,638,118 8,966,882 3,322,000

P
age 40



KPI 1: Affordability Annual  2017/18
(November 2018)

2017 2018 Variance RAG

▲
107 109 1.8 %

▲

116 119 2.4 %

▲

118 121 2.6 %

▲
121 129 5.9 %

►
92 92 No Change

▲
107 111 3.4 %

►

169 169 No Change

▲

92 98 7.0 %

▲

112 115 3.4 %

▬▬▬▬

RPI

Mode

▬▬▬▬

Commercial

Bus

Amber

/ Green  

▬▬▬▬

Merseyrail 

▬▬▬▬

Northern

(City Line)

▬▬▬▬

Tunnels Tolls Cash

▬▬▬▬

Ferries

Commuter

▬▬▬▬

Motoring Costs

▬▬▬▬

Tunnels Fast Tag

▬▬▬▬

Tunnels Average

For monitoring purposes. The data is reported annually and compares the rising costs of 

use of travel services. This data has been based to 2012 for the 2017/18 performance 

cycle.

Benchmark of RPI +1%, this would give target figure of 116 for 2018.

Motoring costs have been taken from the RAC website and are based on a petrol engine 

size of 2000 cc with an annual mileage of 10,000 miles.

Tunnels Average
Commercial Bus

Merseyrail
Northern (City Line)

Tunnels Tolls Cash

Ferries Commuter

Motoring Costs

RPI

Benchmark (RPI +1%)

Tunnels Fast Tag

80

100

120

140

160

180

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

2012 Index Baseline

RAGs

G Green AG Amber / Green

AR Amber / Red R Red

⇧  RAG improvement on last reporting period

⇨ No change in RAG from last reporting period

⇩  RAG declined since last reporting period

P
age 41



KPI 2: Patronage Quarter 3 2018/19

17/18

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Comments

1.3 m 1.3 m 1.0 m 1.2 m

28.8 m 31.8 m 29.8 m 29.0 m

63 k 150 k 190 k 70 k

33 k 40 k 45 k 48 k

2.6 m 2.6 m 2.6 m 2.7 m

4.1 m 4.3 m 4.3 m 4.3 m

 RAG

Amber / Green ⇧

 

 

There is a slight dip in patronage which Bus will observe closely.

Q3 Value is estimated figure - actual available end of Jan

Green ⇨

At the present time, data remains unavailable, due to a failed IT legacy system.  Once 

a solution to extract data is achieved, following the introduction of a new system, on-

going data will be available.

Green 

Green 

Amber / Green 

Green 

Queensway Tunnel

Vehicle Throughput

Kingsway Tunnel

Vehicle Throughput

Mersey Ferries

Leisure Cruises

Mersey Ferries

Commuter Services

18/19

Commercial

Bus

Supported

Bus

Merseyrail

Modes

Northern

(City Line)

Walking
 

The data for this KPI will be reported in Q4.

Cycling  

The data for this KPI will be reported in Q4.

P
age 42



KPI 3: Reliability Quarter 3 2018/19

Bus Supported Bus Commercial Rail - Merseyrail Rail - Northern (City Line)

Q3 is an estimated f igure - the actual f igure w ill be 

available at the end of January.

Average of Periods 7 to 9 2018/2019.  The key issues to 

affect Merseyrail performance in Q3, included 

infrastructure problems; various track circuit, points & 

signal failures, as w ell as the effects of severe w eather.  

Trespass incidents, passenger illness and unit failures 

also impacted on performance.

Average of Periods 7 to 9 2018/2019.  The on-going RMT 

industrial dispute continued to impact on Northern 

signif icantly in Q3.  This resulted in a greatly reduced 

service level, in particular hindering the provision of train 

services after 1700 hours, on strike days.  

Mersey Ferries: Commuter & Leisure Mersey Tunnels: Queensway Mersey Tunnels: Kingsway

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (99.5%)

97%99.399.4

AG ⇨

AG ⇨

G ⇧

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (99.5%)

97%98.197%

AG ⇨

AG ⇨

AG ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (94%)

96%94.595.1

G ⇨

G ⇨

G ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (91%)

70%76.766.2

R ⇩

R ⇨

R ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Benchmark (98%)

99%99%99%

G ⇨

G ⇨

G 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target
between

85-90%

91%91%93%

G ⇨

G ⇨

G ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target
between

85-90%

100100100

G ⇨

G ⇨

G ⇨

P
age 43



KPI 4: Punctuality Quarter 3 2018/19

Bus Supported Bus Commercial Rail - Merseyrail Rail - Northern (City Line)

This f igure is based on October's data only. Merseytravel is w orking closely w ith bus operators to 

improve performance on punctuality.  The 2018/19 Bus 

alliance joint Business and investment plan oversees 

the delivery of  a number of infrastructure schemes 

and studies and in partnership w ith the other local 

authorities the Bus Alliance intends to bid for 

Transforming Cities Funds to implement a package of 

improvements designed to transform busy commuter 

bus corridors

Average of Periods 7 to 9 2018/2019.  The key issues to 

affect Merseyrail performance in Q3, included 

infrastructure problems; various track circuit, points & 

signal failures, as w ell as the effects of severe w eather.  

Trespass incidents, passenger illness and unit failures 

also impacted on performance.

Average of Periods 7 to 9 2018/2019.  The on-going RMT 

industrial dispute continued to impact on Northern 

signif icantly in Q3.  This resulted in a greatly reduced 

service level, in particular hindering the provision of train 

services after 1700 hours, on strike days.  

Mersey Ferries: Commuter Mersey Ferries: Leisure Mersey Tunnels: Queensway Mersey Tunnels: Kingsway

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (91.5%)

90%92.193.6

AG ⇨

G ⇧

G ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (91.5%)

81%86.176.6

AR ⇩

AR ⇨

AR ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Benchmark (94%)

96%94.595.1

G ⇨

G ⇨

G ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Benchmark (91%)

70%76.766.2

R ⇩

R ⇨

R ⇨

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (95%)

93%94%93%

AG ⇩

AG ⇨

AG ⇨

Direction Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Birkenhead to

Liverpool        ►
04:28 22:00 32:00

Liverpool to

Birkenhead    ◄
04:15 13:00 10:00

RAG G ⇨ G ⇨ G ⇨

►

►

►

◄

◄

◄

00:00 01:00 02:00 03:00 04:00 05:00 06:00

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Time (mm:ss)

Benchmark: 05:10

Direction Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Wallasey to

Liverpool       ►
04:26 25:00 24:00

Liverpool to

Wallasey       ◄
04:26 29:00 20:00

RAG G ⇨ G ⇨ G ⇨

►

►

►

◄

◄

◄

00:00 01:00 02:00 03:00 04:00 05:00 06:00

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Time (mm:ss)

Benchmark: 04:55

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target (95%)

99%98%99%

G ⇨

G ⇨

G ⇨

P
age 44



KPI 5: Safety Quarter 3 2018/19

Autumn

2017

Spring

2018

Autumn

2018

78%
Next survey

Autumn 2018
Available in Q4

87%
Next survey

Autumn 2018
Available in Q4

81% 81% Available in Q4

67%
Next survey

Autumn 2018
Available in Q4

73% 76% Available in Q4

72%
Next survey

Autumn 2018
Available in Q4

Criminal

Damage

Anti-social

Behaviour

Violence

Against staff

39.1 89.7 74.5

Green ⇨ Green ⇨ Green ⇨

On the Train: 

Northern

Rail Stations: 

Northern

On the Train: 

Merseyrail

Public Transport  Customer Satisfaction (Quantitative Survey)
Benchmark

(80%)

RAG /

Direction
Comments

Bus Stops

The National Rail Passenger  and the National Bus Passenger 

surveys were in the field during Q3 with the results expected to be 

released Q4.

The passengers are surveyed:

* Bus - once a year in Autumn;

* Merseyrail - twice a year in Spring and Autumn; and

* Northern (City Line) - once a year in Autumn. This is a booster 

survey to collect a larger sample of passengers at stations in the 

Merseyside area. 

On the Bus

 Rail Stations: 

Merseyrail

RAG / Direction

Note: The data is indexed to previous year’s quarter, 2017/18 Q1 = 100.

Comments

On Bus Incidents

Value

P
age 45



KPI 6: Customer Comments Quarter 3 2018/19

91 98% 140 99% 154 99% 132 99% 118 83%

53 100% 54 96% 49 100% 87 99% 878 96%

Comments

Bus: - Customer Information 

Total Received:

93
Resolved within 21 days:

Bus: - Development

Total Received:

142
Resolved within 21 days:

Bus: - Contract Performance

Total Received:

156
Resolved within 21 days:

Asset Management -

Stops & Shelters

Total Received:

143
Resolved within 21 days:

Rail

Total Received:

133
Resolved within 21 days:

Customer Delivery:

 - Ferries

Customer Delivery:

 - Tunnels
Total

Total Received: Total Received: Total Received: Total Received: Total Received:

Response Times to customers

Comments Resolved within 21 Days

53 56 49 88 913
Resolved within 21 days: Resolved within 21 days:

Mystery Shopper (Qualitative Survey)

No. of Reports

Public Transport Customer Satisfaction (Quantitative Survey)

RAG

100
Green

⇨

Comments
The summer wave was completed during July and August 2018 across the bus and rail network. Other areas tested included information to 

help wayfinding at bus/rail interchanges; and the Merseytravel Journey Planning App. 

Mode

Visits completed/

Visits programmed

Bus Services

Value (%) RAG

Available in Q4 N/A 

Available in Q4 N/A 

Available in Q4

Merseyrail

Northern City Line
N/A 

The National Rail Passenger  and the National Bus Passenger surveys were in the field during Q3 with the results expected to be released 

Q4.

See KPI 5: Safety: Customer Transport Customer Satisfaction for the frequency of surveys. 

Asset Management - Stops & Shelters:

The affected items comprise of 

protracted consultations with district 

partners and residents which take time 

in awaiting responses. Some are not 

quick fixes as they require extensive 

investigation and subsequent work.

Green

⇧

Amber / Green

⇩

Green

⇨

Amber / Green

⇩

Amber / Green

⇨

Amber / Green

⇨

Amber / Green

⇧

Amber / Green

⇨

Amber / Green

⇨

Amber / Red

⇨

Resolved within 21 days: Resolved within 21 days: Resolved within 21 days:

Customer Delivery:

 - Hubs

Customer Delivery:

 - Smart Ticketing

P
age 46



KPI 7: Connectivity Quarter 3 2018/19

RAG

Internal connectivity

of the Merseyside rail network RAG

Liverpool 8

Glasgow 13

Leeds 17

Manchester 19

London 29

Number of direct rail linkages 

between key Great Britain nodes:

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

Green 

⇨

Amber / 

Green ⇨

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■

Bristol 19

Note:  All figures & comments as Q2 

Rail engineering work at Lime Street from 2nd June to 29th July saw less routes serving the city; during the full blocade at Lime Street 

this decreased further, to 30.1%. Elsewhere in Q2 overall connectivity was very slightly down on Q2 last year at 35.3% - this is down to 

the timetable change meaning that the service from Preston to South Parkway no longer runs.

Combined connectivity is up very slightly, owing to marginally better interchange options via other routes.

External connectivity was expected to change with the December 2018 timetable, however confirmation of this is now subject to change.

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■

Connectivity of Merseyside

(combined rail and bus figure)

Green ⇨

Newcastle 15

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■
■

■

0

10

20

30

40
50

60

70

80

90

100

53.1%

0

10

20

30

40
50

60

70

80

90

100

35.3%

P
age 47



KPI 8: Key Strategic Projects Quarter 3 2018/19

LGF 1 Rail Projects: Halton Curve RAG
Green

⇨
Walrus Delivery Programme / Smart Ticketing RAG

Amber / Green

⇨

SPI 1 SPI 1

CPI 1 CPI 1

LGF 1 Rail Projects: Newton-le-Willows RAG
Amber / Red

⇨
Bus Alternative Delivery Model RAG

Amber / Green

⇨

SPI 0.6 SPI 0.6

CPI 0.9 CPI 1

LGF 1 Rail Projects: Maghull North RAG
Green

⇨
Mersey Ferries Programme RAG

Amber / Green

⇨

SPI 1 SPI

CPI 1 CPI

Rail Station Devolution RAG Tolls System Refresh RAG
Green

⇧

SPI SPI 1

CPI CPI 1

Rolling Stock RAG
Amber / Green

⇨
Kingsway Rewire RAG

Green

⇨

SPI SPI 1

CPI CPI 1

Programme has not been baselined at present and hence no SPI/CPI 

reported. Officers are working on a range of issues to establish asset 

condition and planned expenditure for the CP6 (Network Rail Budget for 

period 2019-2024). 

Project is complete.

SPI (Schedule Performance Index)

Indicates how efficiently the project is actually progressing compared to the planned project schedule. 

• If the SPI is greater than one, this means more work has been completed than originally planned. In other words, 

ahead of schedule.

• If the SPI is equal to one, this means work is being completed at about the same rate as planned or on time.

• If the SPI is less than one, this means less work has been completed than had been planned. In other words, 

behind schedule.

CPI (Cost Performance Index)

Provides an indication of how well the project is remaining on budget.

• If the CPI is greater than one it indicates that the project is under budget.

• If the CPI is equal to one, this means the project is proceeding exactly as per the planned budget spend. 

• If the CPI is less than one it indicates that a project is over budget.

The second stage mock up was assembled at Lime St station and put 

on public display. It has attracted much public interest and generally 

positive feedback. PTI delivery remains on course for June 2019 

completion.  Two Tranches have been completed and handed back on 

time. 

Project is complete.

Project is practically complete on site. Awaiting commencement of 

services across the Curve which are expected in May 2019. 

Programme continues to progress. The Apprentice Card was 

successfully launched on Monday 26th November. 

Project continues to be constructed. Practical completion expected in 

January 2019. 

Development of the outline business case continues. Engagement with 

bus contractors on Enhanced Partnerships continues.

Project is complete and open to the public. During this period the focus has been on finalising the documents 

required for the procurement process. The OJEU notice was issued on 

14th December. Awaiting baseline of programme so SPI/CPI can be 

reported. 

P
age 48



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee  
 
Meeting:     7 March 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF MERSEYTRAVEL 
 

MERSEY FERRIES UPDATE MARCH 2019 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 This report is aimed at supplementing the regular corporate quarterly performance 

report submitted to the Transport Committee, providing a summary of key activities 
within the Mersey Ferries, including an update on progress of the long term Mersey 
Ferries Strategy. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that the Transport Committee note the contents of the report. 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The details within this report provide an update of key activities at Mersey Ferries 

since our last update report in October 2018.  For details on specific performance 
on passenger numbers and financials, please refer to the corporate quarterly 
performance report. 

 
 Operational Update and Performance 
 
3.2 Whilst members will receive details around the Mersey Ferries patronage, reliability 

and punctuality measures in the standard corporate performance reports, it is also 
recognised that an update in other key activities and operational matters would 
raise awareness of the work on-going within the Service Area. 

 
3.3 Members of the Transport Committee will be aware that following a range of service 

loss during the 2017 season, officers introduced a range of initiatives in 2018 aimed 
at improving vessel availability – which in turn proved successful. This is evidenced 
by a 99% availability rate during the 2018 key summer period. 

 
3.4 One of the key operational changes supporting this improvement was to berth the 

vessel on the river, overnight, on a Friday and Saturday evening instead of placing 
her within the Liverpool Docking system. This not only improved reliability, but also 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



created further commercial opportunities to provide evening cruises of a Friday and 
Saturday evening – traditionally popular nights for such events. Whilst this 
arrangement did incur additional staffing costs of around £17k, this was easily offset 
by a significant increase in income linked to reliability, and also additional evening 
cruises. This process generated an estimated additional £140k for Mersey Ferries in 
income. As a result, it is proposed this model will be adopted moving forward and 
continually assessed. 

 
3.5 In December 2018, during a routine inspection of our assets, Engineers identified a 

range of concerns with the condition of one of the two link span bridges in 
Seacombe terminal. As a precautionary measure, and on the basis we have two 
link span bridges in Seacombe, the North bridge was taken out of service pending 
further investigation and inspections. This did not impact on operational service as 
passengers were diverted to use the South bridge. A subsequent more detailed 
report has highlighted a number of essential urgent works, which are scheduled to 
be completed during February 2019 – ensuring the bridge is returned to service 
ahead of our busy summer season. 

 
3.6 It was expected that Snowdrop would be returned to her original livery in February 

2019, following 4 years as the “Dazzle” vessel. However, due to the popularity of 
the Dazzle scheme, agreement has been reached with all partners to maintain the 
Dazzle colours and design whilst Snowdrop remains in service. As a result, 
following out of water survey in March 2019, the vessel will return to service with a 
refreshed Dazzle paintwork. 

 
 Ferries Strategy Update 
 
3.7 In terms of the new Vessels, on 14 December 2018 the procurement process was 

formally advertised with initial submissions requested by end January 2019. This 
procurement process will be progressed as efficiently as possible and formal 
announcements made as appropriate. 

 
3.8 An application for European ESIF funding as a contribution towards a low emission 

vessel(s) has been successful, and we are pleased to confirm that a £1.9m 
contribution towards the cost of these new vessel(s) has been secured. Further 
applications for funding, specifically through the Transforming Cities Fund, are 
being actively progressed by officers. 

 
3.9 Members will recall the Ferries Strategy assumed the future of the Royal Daffodil 

would be resolved and key decisions taken alongside any decision to proceed with 
the procurement of new vessels. Detailed discussions continue in respect of the 
future for Royal Daffodil and it is hoped that these discussions can be concluded 
this financial year. 

 
3.10 The Strategy also identified a range of key interventions for the Landing Stages, in 

particular the two landing stages in Wirral at Seacombe and Woodside. In terms of 
Seacombe, the strategy assumed a necessary investment in both the landing stage 
and terminal in the first 5 years of the programme, and officers continue to review a 
range of feasibility options on the development of the landing stage and link span 
bridges. The most recent activities have seen development of a feasibility study for 
the bridges themselves, which appear to be the most critical infrastructure in terms 
of timescales. It is currently assumed the subsequent investment, subject to 

Page 50



available budget, will be in 2019/20. We are now in the process of commissioning, 
through Royal Haskoning, the design and project methodologies to assess and 
determine the optimum solution for both bridges and landing stage at Seacombe. A 
number of options have been provided along with an „Option Decision Matrix‟ to 
assist in the process of arriving at the best conclusions. 

 
3.11 In respect of the Woodside terminal, a lease has been signed with the Wirral 

Chamber of Commerce for the catering offer in the terminal and officers are 
contributing to a growth development workshop, commissioned via Wirral Council, 
to drive further footfall to the Woodside area. 

 
 
4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1. Financial 

 
There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. The details of 
financial performance are reported corporately in the quarterly performance report, 
aimed at supplementing this report. The Mersey Ferries Programme Board 
continues to ensure long term planning to fund the various interventions identified 
within the strategy. Any formal approvals for expenditure will be via the 
Merseytravel meeting as required. 

 
4.2. Human Resources 
 

There are no HR related issues associated with this report. Staff will of course be 
fully engaged with any new vessel proposals during the procurement process. 
 

4.3. Physical Assets 
 

Projects associated with the assets within Mersey Ferries are summarised within 
this update report and Asset Management colleagues are key members of the 
project teams. 
 

4.4. Information Technology 
 

There are no issues associated with Information technology within this report. 
 
4.5 PMO Implications 
 
 The Mersey Ferries long term strategy is a key project for Merseytravel and the 

Combined Authority, and so the programme is monitored in detail through regular 
monthly dashboard reports. 

 
5. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
5.1 The increasing risk linked to the Mersey Ferry operations is the reliability of the 

existing vessels. Both are now 59 years old, and despite investment and effective 
maintenance over their life, the vessels performance had shown a worrying trend of 
loss of service for technical faults. Whilst this issue has been addressed in the short 
term, the Ferry strategy aims to mitigate many of these risks in the longer term. 

Page 51



During the 2019 season, the level of service provision will be monitored closely to 
ensure service relaibility. 

 
5.2 The second key risk, partly realised in the last quarter, is the reliability and condition 

of the two Wirral based landing stages and link span bridges. Regular inspections 
are in place on all assets and necessary remedial works are being undertaken 
whilst longer term options are explored in greater detail. 

 
5.3 The Ferries long term strategy has a Programme Board, with a specific risk register 

aimed at understanding and mitigating the key risks associated with the identified 
interventions. Officers review this monthly to monitor changes and ensure 
appropriate responses to any change. 

 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

As the report is for noting only and does not require any formal decisions, an 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed in this case. However, a key 
element of the design process will involvement engagement with a diverse range of 
service users, aimed at ensuring appropriate views are taken into account for all 
protected characteristics. In particular, work has already commenced via the 
organisations Access Officer on outline design of the new vessels, and this will 
continue during the design and construction phase. 

 
7. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 

The information contained within this report is linked closely to communication plans 
in key projects to ensure key customer and stakeholder engagement where 
relevant. 

 
8. CONCLUSION 
 

This report summarises key activities within the Mersey Ferries to ensure Members 
are aware of topical and relevant issues, along with progress of activities included 
within the relevant service plan and strategy. 

 
 

Gary Evans 
Head of Customer Delivery 

 
Contact Officer(s): 
Gary Evans, Head of Customer Delivery, Merseytravel, 0151 330 4502 
Dil Masters, Head of Asset Management, Merseytravel, 0151 330 4500 
Liz Storey, Corporate Communications Manager, Merseytravel, 0151 330 1430 
 
Appendices: 
 
None 
 
Background Documents:  
 
None 

Page 52



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee  
 
Meeting:     7 March 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF POLICY AND STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING 
 

RESPONDING TO WELSH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION: 
IMPROVING PUBLIC TRANSPORT IN WALES 

 
 
1.  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report presents to members an outline Liverpool City Region response to a 

consultation on improved public transport in Wales, the content of which is 
summarised in section (3).  The consultation was launched by the Welsh 
Government on 10 December 2018 and the deadline for responses is 27 March 
2019. 

 
1.2 Developing a response is considered an important and timely opportunity to further 

build on longstanding commitments and joint work with the Welsh Government and 
its partners on issues of enhanced cross-border connectivity. 

 
1.3 This report sets out an outline response to the consultation in section (4), 

recognising the mismatch between the launch of the consultation, the date of the 
Transport Committee’s meetings and the consultation deadline.  However, the 
response is pitched at a strategic level in the spirit of devolution, as it is considered 
inappropriate for the Combined Authority to comment upon details of governance or 
powers that solely and directly affect Welsh interests.  

 
1.4 Approval is sought from the Transport Committee to allow the finalisation of the 

response to be delegated to the Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning, in 
full consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Transport Committee.   

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that members of the Transport Committee: 
 

(a) Consider and endorse the outline response to the above consultation set out in 
section 4; and 
 

(b) Grant delegated authority to the Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning, 
in full consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Transport Committee to 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



finalise the draft response ahead of its submission to the Welsh Government on 
the 27 March 2019. 

 
 
3.  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Welsh Government’s consultation sets out proposals for improving the 

legislative framework for how local bus services are planned and delivered, 
including the licensing regime for taxis and private hire vehicles, in Wales.  It also 
covers wider, significant issues of transport governance and governance reform.  
The document is available at the following link:- 

 
https://beta.gov.wales/improving-public-transport 

 
3.2 Looking at proposals for bus services, the consultation document notes the decline 

seen in bus patronage in Wales over many years.  Allied to this is the way that local 
bus services and infrastructure are delivered, being the responsibility of a number of 
stakeholders including bus operators, 22 local authorities and Welsh Government. 
Operating in this way is considered to contribute to the fragmentation of bus 
services, and it is believed that there is a need for organisational and structural 
change.  

 
3.3 In terms of bus powers, the Welsh Government proposes new powers to enable 

local authorities to make Enhanced Quality Partnerships, to revise current 
legislation to make franchising a useable tool for Welsh local authorities and 
whereby a local authority has an exclusive right to award a contract to run a bus 
route or routes to the most competitive bidder.  The Welsh Government is also 
proposing to revise current legislation so that local authorities can run their own bus 
services. 

 
3.4 On taxi licensing, the document highlights the complexity of taxi licensing and the 

antiquity of the governing legislation.  There is a mismatch between the legislation 
and modern practice (e.g. mobile phone bookings and operations across local 
authority boundaries) and which is creating problems.  The Welsh Government’s 
view is that the best way of underpinning improvement is to centralise the licensing 
regime and set national standards for taxi and private hire vehicle licensing. All taxis 
and private hire vehicles in Wales would have to meet these standards in order to 
obtain a licence.  

 
3.5 The consultation recognises that skills and knowledge available within local 

authorities to effectively discharge their transport functions successfully is 
diminishing. This pressure on skilled transport management workforces is 
exacerbated by the multiple tasks which each local authority must perform 
individually. There are many support tasks, often administrative or procurement-
based, which are inefficient for each local authority to perform individually and 
contribute to fragmentation. 

 
3.6 As such, a significant aspect of the consultation concerns initial proposals for 

establishing Joint Transport Authorities (JTAs).  The purpose of a JTA would be to 
pool existing transport functions and powers of two or more local authorities. The 
Order(s) establishing JTAs would specify the functions that are to be exercised by 
the JTA. The functions to be transferred to the JTA could be exercised on either a 

Page 54

https://beta.gov.wales/improving-public-transport


national/strategic basis or on a regional/implementation basis, based on the nature 
of the function being discharged, and the Order(s) establishing the JTAs would 
facilitate this. The JTA would be able to develop a distinctive regional approach in a 
broader national context towards transport planning and implementation.  It could 
have responsibility for the full range of public transport functions, as well as certain 
traffic management functions. 

 
3.7 In respect of the governance of taxis, the Welsh Government is proposing to 

redirect all of the existing taxi licensing functions away from local authorities and 
into a national licensing authority. It also proposes to confer a power on the Welsh 
Ministers to create national standards, which the JTA or local authority would have 
regard to when issuing licences.  

 
 
4. BASIS OF CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
4.1 The consultation itself is detailed and poses a large number of questions.  Many of 

these are too detailed to warrant a Liverpool City Region response.  Moreover, in 
the spirit of devolution, it is considered inappropriate for the Combined Authority to 
comment upon detailed issues of governance or power that solely and directly affect 
Welsh interests.   

 
4.2 As such a short, high level response is proposed that outlines the following:- 
 

a) A brief outline of the genesis of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
and its range of powers, to highlight the similarities in governance terms with 
proposals for Joint Transport Authorities in Wales and the advantages such 
bodies can bring.   
 

b) The potential to give local authorities in Wales the full suite of tools they need to 
plan transport at the most appropriate functional level is welcomed, as 
experienced in the LCR through the 2015 Devolution Deal.  This can enable the 
best decisions on transport to be taken at the right strategic, geographic level.  
 

c) Allied to this is to welcome the principle of bringing additional transport 
regulatory powers to Wales that are on a similar footing to those enjoyed across 
the border (e.g. the ability to franchise bus services).  This has the potential to 
achieve greater parity and consistency between the transport powers and 
governance arrangements of Wales and those of the Liverpool City Region.  
This reflects the fact that the LCR shares a national river boundary with Wales, 
in addition to close social, economic and transport links with North East Wales.  
 

d) Measures that enhance cross-boundary collaboration on transport issues are 
fully welcomed. Disparities between governance arrangements and associated 
powers can create practical differences when working on cross-boundary issues, 
and can pose barriers to achieving shared visions to enhance cross-boundary 
transport connectivity. 
 

e) It will be important to ensure that new powers available help to improve levels of 
clarity on where responsibilities for specific issues lie, e.g. for taxi licensing, bus 
operations, highways, ticketing, funding or transport planning.  This will be 
important to maximise collaboration and efficiency of delivery.  

Page 55



f) There should be a requirement for Welsh local authorities and the Welsh 
Government to consult with adjoining English local authority areas on the 
proposed use of the planned reforms and new governance models, to secure 
the best possible alignment across functional economic geographies. 
 

g) The LCRCA and Merseytravel would be very pleased to assist the Welsh 
Government and the constituent local authorities in any governance reviews or 
on its experiences of governance reform or on the use of new transport powers. 
 

 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no direct implications 
 
 
6.  RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 

There are no direct implications. 
 
 

7.  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no direct implications in this high level report. 
 
 

8.  PRIVATE IMPLICATIONS 
 

None – this is a public consultation and a public-facing draft response. 
 
 
9.  COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 

There are no direct implications.  The Liverpool City Region enjoys close and 
effective joint working relationships with the Welsh Government and now with 
Transport for Wales as its most recent executive body.    

 
 
10.  CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 This report presents to members an outline Liverpool City Region response to a 

consultation on improved public transport in Wales, the content of which is 
summarised above.  This is an important and timely opportunity to further build on 
longstanding commitments and joint work with the Welsh Government and its 
partners on issues of enhanced cross-border connectivity. 

 
10.2 This report sets out an outline response to the consultation and is pitched at a 

strategic level.  This is because it is considered inappropriate for the Combined 
Authority to comment upon details of governance or powers that solely and directly 
affect Welsh interests.  

 
10.3 The draft response welcomes the potential of additional transport powers being 

made available to Wales, as this has the potential to achieve greater parity and 

Page 56



consistency between the transport powers and governance arrangements of Wales 
and those of the Liverpool City Region.   

 
10.4 Approval is sought from the Transport Committee to allow the finalisation of the 

response to be delegated to the Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning, in 
full consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Transport Committee, ahead of 
the Welsh Government’s response deadline.   

 
 

KIRSTY PEARCE 
Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning 

 
 
 

Contact Officer(s): 
Huw Jenkins, Lead Officer – Transport Policy, Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
(0151 330 1393) 
 
 
Appendices: 
None 
 
Background Documents:  
None 
 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	Minutes
	Appendix C - Revised

	5 Quarter 3 Merseytravel Corporate Plan, Performance and Financial Monitoring Report 2018/19
	Appendix A Merseytravel Revenue Budget Quarter 3
	Enc. 3 for Quarter 3 Merseytravel Financial Monitoring and Corporate Plan Performance Report 201
	Appendix C KPI Suite Master Slides Q3 2018-19

	6 Mersey Ferries Quarterly Update March 2019
	7 Response to Welsh Government Consultation - Improving Public Transport in Wales

